
PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE  
AGENDA 

 
Called by:  Burt Gerl, Chairman DATE: WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2021 
Members:  Aaron Booker, Brad  TIME: **** 5:00 PM **** 
Lindmark, Tim Nabors, Angie Goral, 
Kevin McCarthy, Dorothy Redd 

LOCATION:   CONFERENCE ROOM 815 
BEHIND COUNTY BOARD ROOM 
COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
400 WEST STATE STREET 
ROCKFORD, IL 61101 

 
AGENDA:  
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call  

C. Approval of July 21, 2021 Minutes  

D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety and 
Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three 
minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  We will 
allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  Speakers 
may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning Committee or 
the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may not be addressed 
in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of three times per calendar year on the 
same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same topic in a statement on 
what is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by the chair, please stand and 
state your name.  Thank you. 

E. Resolution Renewing Service Agreement with Tommy Meeks using Public Safety Sales Tax 
Alternative Funding                    

F. Resolution Renewing Service Agreement with Rosecrance for Services at the Winnebago 
County Jail using Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding                        

G. Resolution Renewing Service Agreement with Remedies for Services at the Resource 
Intervention Center using Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 

H. Resolution Regarding Second Amendment Sanctuary 

I. Safe-T Act Update from Chief Deputy Rick Ciganek 

J. Other Matters   

K. Adjournment 



 

 

 Page 1  
  

Winnebago County Board 
Public Safety and Judiciary Committee Meeting 

Virtual Meeting – Zoom 
(Winnebago County YouTube Live) 

 
Wednesday, July 21, 2021 

 5:30 PM 
 

Present: Others Present: 
Burt Gerl, Chairman    
Kevin McCarthy 
Brad Lindmark 
Tim Nabors 
Angie Goral 
Dorothy Redd 
 
Absent: 
Aaron Booker     
 

Pat Thompson, County Administrator 
Marlana Dokken, CJCC Administrator 
Deb Jarvis, 17th Circuit’s Director of Court Services 
Rebecca Laue, State’s Attorney’s Office 
 

AGENDA:       
A. Call to Order  
B. Roll Call 
C. Approval of April 21, 2021 Minutes 
D. Public Comment – This is the time we invite the public to address the Public Safety and 

Judiciary Committee with issues and concerns.  We ask you to limit your comments to three 
minutes.  Personal attacks or inappropriate language of any sort will not be tolerated.  We 
will allow a maximum of five speakers on a first come basis with sign up at the meeting.  
Speakers may not address zoning matters which are pending before the ZBA, the Zoning 
Committee or the County Board.  Personnel matters or pending or threatened litigation may 
not be addressed in open session.  An individual may speak a maximum of three times per 
calendar year on the same topic.  This prohibition shall include the repetition of the same 
topic in a statement on what is purported to be a different topic.  After acknowledgement by 
the chair, please stand and state your name.  Thank you. 

E. Presentation of the Resource Intervention Center and Youth Probation – Deb Jarvis, Director 
of Court Services for 17th Judicial Circuit 

F. Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives:  Updates including Focused Deterrence Re-Entry 
Program – Marlana Dokken, Director, Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 

G. Other Matters 
H. Adjournment 

 
Chairman Gerl called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM.  
 
Motion to approve the April 21, 2021 Minutes 
Moved:  Mr. Gerl, Seconded:  Ms. Goral and Mr. Lindmark. 
Roll call:  Mr. Lindmark yes, Mr. Nabors yes, Ms. Goral yes, Mr. McCarthy yes, Ms. Redd yes and 
Mr. Gerl yes.  
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.        
 



 

 

 Page 2  
  

Public Comment 
Chairman Gerl omitted reading the Public Comment section of the Agenda due to no one present to 
speak. 
 
Presentation of the Resource Intervention Center and Youth Probation – Deb Jarvis, Director 
of Court Services for 17th Judicial Circuit 

• A discussion followed. 
 
Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives:  Updates including Focused Deterrence Re-Entry 
Program – Marlana Dokken, Director, Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives 

• A discussion followed. 
 
Other Matters 
None 
 
Motion to Adjourn.  Moved:  Mr. McCarthy, Seconded:  Ms. Redd.     
Motion passed by unanimous voice vote.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Amy Ferling 
Administrative Assistant 
 
 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:    November 17, 2021 

Resolution Title:  RESOLUTION RENEWING SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH TOMMY MEEKS USING PUBLIC SAFETY 

SALES TAX ALTERNATIVE FUNDING 

Board Meeting Date:  November 23, 2021 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?  Yes  - Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding                 Amount:   $12,000                                                                                     

If not, explain funding source:   n/a 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:    40122/43190                                                                      Budget Impact:   n/a 

 
Background Information:  The County proposes to renew funding to support preventative and 
rehabilitative services at the Winnebago County Resource Intervention Center (RIC).  TOMMY MEEKS will 
offer mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice system in Winnebago County 
through 13-week groups. 
 
Recommendation: I recommend entering into Agreement with TOMMY MEEKS for services at the 
Winnebago County Resource Intervention Center. 
                
Contract/Agreement: County will execute agreement with TOMMY MEEKS, see Resolution Exhibit A, 
which contains a 30-day out clause.  
 
Legal Review:  Yes – legal review of agreement was completed and recommendations incorporated. 
 
Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with agreement(s) executions. 



County Board:  November 23, 2021 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Burt Gerl 
Submitted by:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 
   

2022 CR __ 
 

RESOLUTION RENEWING SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH TOMMY MEEKS USING 

PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATIVE FUNDING 

 
WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board is the statutory governing body of Winnebago 

County, Illinois, a body politic and corporate; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has determined it is beneficial to the community to provide 

mentoring and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice system in Winnebago County; 
and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to have Contractor provide these services and act as a liaison 
between the County and various groups within the community on related matters; and 

 
WHEREAS, Contractor agrees to provide these services for the County under the terms and 

conditions as set forth in the Agreement attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A. 
 
WHEREAS, the with the County Board wishes to engage the Tommy Meeks to provide such 

services for twelve thousand dollars ($12,000) to be paid from the FY2022 Alternative Programs 
budget; and, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 

Illinois that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to sign an independent contractor 
agreement for professional services with Tommy Meeks for services as a Winnebago County 
Community Liaison, in substantially the same form as contained in Resolution Exhibit A.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effectively immediately 
upon its adoption 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Clerk is hereby directed to prepare and deliver certified 
copies of this Resolution to the County Administrator and County Auditor. 
 
        

Respectfully submitted, 
 

  PUBLIC SAFETY and JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 
 



 

 AGREE     DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman                                  Burt Gerl, Chairman 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Aaron Booker          Aaron Booker  
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy     Kevin McCarthy 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark       Brad Lindmark 
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Tim Nabors       Tim Nabors 
 
________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Angie Goal         Angie Goral  
 
________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 

 

                      ________________________________  

                                                                                  Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman of the 
           County Board of the  
           County of Winnebago, Illinois 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow, Clerk of the   
County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois 



Page 1 of 3 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT  

FOR SERVICES AS WINNEBAGO COUNTY COMMUNITY LIAISON 

This Agreement is made this       day of      , 2021,  between the County of Winnebago, a 

unit of local government (hereinafter referred to as “County”), whose principal address is 404 

Elm Street, Rockford, Illinois, 61101, and Tommy Meeks (hereinafter referred to as 

“Contractor”). 

RECITALS 

Whereas, the County has determined it is beneficial to the community to provide mentoring 

and job counseling to individuals involved in the justice system in Winnebago County; and 

Whereas, the County desires to have Contractor provide these services and act as a liaison 

between the County and various groups within the community on related matters; and 

Whereas, the County desires Contractor to provide services described in Section One and 

reporting of accurate and timely data defined in Exhibit A. 

Whereas, Contractor agrees to provide these services for the County under the terms and 

conditions as set forth in this Agreement. 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the sufficiency of 

which both parties hereby acknowledge, it is agreed by and between the County and Contractor as 

follows: 

SECTION ONE 

DESCRIPTION OF WORK 

The services to be performed by the Contractor under this Agreement shall be the following: 

1. Facilitating four (4), 13-week Wake Up groups for individuals engaged in the justice

system in Winnebago County at the request of the Probation Department; and

2. Assisting individuals with locating and pursuing employment opportunities; and

3. Representing Winnebago County on various committees and at local functions as requested

by the County Administrator.

SECTION TWO 

PAYMENT 

The County shall pay Contractor on a monthly basis for the work to be performed under this 

Agreement as follows:  $1,000.00 per month for eight (8) to ten (10) hours per week.  Contractor 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



 

 Page 2 of 3 

shall provide the County with a monthly invoice listing all dates and hours worked.  Contractor’s 

invoice shall be paid according to the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act.  The County 

will not reimburse for mileage or expenses.   

 

 

SECTION THREE 

 

RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

 

It is understood and agreed between the parties that this Agreement is not intended to nor does it 

create an employment contract between the County, on the one hand, and the Contractor and any 

of Contractor’s employees, on the other hand, not does it create a joint relationship or partnership 

between the parties hereto.  Neither Contractor nor any of Contractor’s employees are entitled to 

benefits that the County provides for County employees.  Contractor’s relationship to the County 

is solely and exclusively that of an independent contractor.  County may, during the term of this 

Agreement, engage other independent contractors or employees to perform the same work that 

Contractor performs hereunder. 

 

SECTION FOUR 

 

TAX AND UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE LIABILITY 

 

Any payments to Contractor under this Agreement are subject to any and all applicable 

withholdings.  To the extent permitted by Illinois law, Contractor covenants to save the County 

harmless from any and all liability for withholding state or federal income tax, unemployment 

compensation contributions and any other employer’s tax liability now or subsequently imposed 

on County based upon payments made by County to Contractor. 

 

SECTION FIVE 

 

INDEMNIFICATION 

 

The parties agree to indemnify each other and their officers, directors, employees and agents, from 

and against all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, judgments, penalties, and fines, including 

reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, arising out of or relating to, directly or indirectly: 1) any 

negligent or intentional act or omission of the indemnifying party associated with its performance 

under this Agreement, or 2) the indemnifying party’s failure to perform any of its obligations under 

this Agreement. 

SECTION SIX 

 

DURATION 

 

The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2021 to September 30, 2022.  Either party 

may cancel this Agreement for any reason upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.  

This Agreement will not be automatically renewed.     

 

 

 



 

 Page 3 of 3 

 

SECTION SEVEN 

 

WAIVER 

 

The failure of either party hereto at any time or times to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall 

in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions or to affect the validity of this Agreement 

or any part hereof, or the right of either party thereafter to enforce each and every provision in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

 

SECTION EIGHT 

 

VALIDITY AND INTERPRETATION 

 

If any term, provision or condition contained in this Agreement is held to be invalid or 

unenforceable, to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement (or the application of the term, 

provision or condition to persons or circumstances other than those in respect of which it is invalid 

or unenforceable) shall not be affected thereby, and each and every other term, provision and 

condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.  

The validity and interpretation of this contract shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois. 

 

SECTION NINE 

 

NOTICES 

 

All notices regarding this agreement shall be delivered to the other party at the address set forth 

above or at such other address as may be designated by a party in writing.  

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this contract on the day and year first 

above written. 

 

 

County of Winnebago, an Illinois  Contractor 

body politic and corporate, 

 

By:  _____________________________  _____________________________ 

        Joseph V. Chiarelli, Chairman              Tommy Meeks 

  

 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Lori Gummow 

Winnebago County Clerk 
 



EXHIBIT A 

GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS 

 

Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data 

report will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by 

Winnebago County Administration. Must include number served for each service. 

GOAL: To change criminal thinking patterns by understanding history and race relations.  

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected  

Accept referrals for Wake Up 

Group to change thinking patterns 
# of referrals to group 40 

Increased understanding of history 

and race relations. 
# (13-week) groups held  4 

Increased engagement  # completing 13-week program 20 

Increase job opportunities through 

employer relationships 
# of new partnering companies 4 

Increase job opportunities through 

community partnerships 
# of Job Fairs / community events attended 4 

 



 

  

 

Resolution Executive Summary 
Prepared By:   Marlana Dokken 

Committee:   Public Safety and Judiciary Committee 

Committee Date:    November 17, 2021 

Resolution Title:  RESOLUTION RENEWING SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH ROSECRANCE FOR SERVICES AT THE 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY JAIL USING PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATIVE FUNDING 

Board Meeting Date:  November 23, 2021 

Budget Information: 
 

Was item budgeted?    Yes – Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding         Amount:   $196,295                                                                                       

If not, explain funding source:   n/a 

ORG/OBJ/Project Code:  40122/43190                                                                        Budget Impact:   n/a 
 
Background Information:  The County proposes to renew funding to support preventative and 
rehabilitative services at the Winnebago County Jail.  The Crime Commission has reviewed the application 
and concurs. ROSECRANCE will provide licensed substance use disorder treatment and assessment 
services.  
 
Recommendation:    I recommended entering into an Agreement with ROSECRANCE for Substance Abuse 
and Assessment services at the Winnebago County Jail.  
 
Contract/Agreement: County will execute ROSECRANCE agreement (See Resolution Exhibit A) which 
contains a 30-day out clause.  
 
Legal Review:  Yes – legal review of agreement was completed and recommendations incorporated. 
 
Follow-Up:   Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives will proceed with agreement execution. 



County Board:  November 23, 2021 

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:  Burt Gerl, Committee Chairman 
Submitted by:  Public Safety & Judicial Committee 
 

2021 CR 
 

RESOLUTION RENEWING SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH ROSECRANCE FOR SERVICES AT THE 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY JAIL USING PUBLIC SAFETY SALES TAX ALTERNATIVE FUNDING 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago recognizes the need for substance use disorder 

assessment and treatment services in the Winnebago County Jail; and 
 
WHEREAS, Rosecrance, Inc. provides such services and has provided those services to 

men and women in the Jail for a number of years; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the County desires to have Rosecrance continue to provide substance use 
disorder assessment and treatment services in the Jail for fiscal year 2021, pursuant to the 
terms of the Agreement attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A; and 
 
       WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee of the County Board for the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, has reviewed the proposed terms of the Agreement with Rosecrance, 
attached hereto as Resolution Exhibit A, and recommends contracting with Rosecrance under 
the terms set forth in the Agreement.   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to execute the Agreement 
with Rosecrance, Inc., in substantially the same form as contained in Resolution Exhibit A. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the Winnebago County Auditor, Winnebago 
County Administrator, and Winnebago County Jail Superintendent. 

 
                 Respectfully submitted, 

 
PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

 
 
 
 
 



County Board:  November 23, 2021 

 

            AGREE                         DISAGREE 
 
 
________________________________       ___________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman                                       Burt Gerl, Chairman 
 
________________________________              ___________________________________ 
Aaron Booker               Aaron Booker  
 
________________________________              ___________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy          Kevin McCarthy 
 
________________________________       ___________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark            Brad Lindmark 
 
________________________________       ___________________________________ 
Tim Nabors            Tim Nabors 
 
________________________________              ___________________________________ 
Angie Goal              Angie Goral  
 
________________________________       ___________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd           Dorothy Redd 
 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 

 

                                        ________________________________  
                                                                                  Joseph V. Chiarelli 

     Chairman of the County Board  
     of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________   
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 



AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO AND ROSECRANCE, INC. 

Jail Alternatives Treatment Program 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is effective as of            , 2021, by and between 
ROSECRANCE, INC., an Illinois-not-for profit corporation (“Rosecrance”), and the COUNTY OF 
WINNEBAGO (“County”). Rosecrance and County may be referred to herein individually as a 
“Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”  

WHEREAS, the County recognizes the need for professional assistance in providing 
quality, licensed substance use disorder assessments and treatment services in the Winnebago 
County Jail for men and women who are in need of such services; and 

WHEREAS, Rosecrance is a professional, licensed organization that provides substance 
use disorder assessments and treatment services to such persons; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed that the services provided to the County pursuant to 
this Agreement will be beneficial to the parties, the community, and the men and women in need 
of such services.   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants contained 
herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

Article I. GENERAL TERMS 

Section 1.01 Term of Agreement 

The Agreement shall commence and be binding on the Parties hereto for the period of 
October 1, 2021 through September 30, 2022.  

Section 1.02 Termination 

Either Party may terminate this Agreement upon 30 days’ written notice to the other. In 
the event of termination, County will provide payment to Rosecrance for all services rendered 
up to the termination date. 

Section 1.03 Confidentiality 

Each Party agrees to comply with all State and Federal laws, rules, and regulations, 
including but not limited to the Illinois Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities 

RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A



Confidentiality Act, 42 CFR Part 2, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
(HIPAA), concerning the confidentiality of client information. 

Section 1.04 Access to Records 

Rosecrance agrees to allow the employees of the County access to the records of any 
client assessed for participation in the Jail Alternatives Treatment Program upon receipt of an 
appropriate consent and release of information that complies with 42 CFR Part 2, the Illinois 
Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Confidentiality Act, HIPAA, and any other 
applicable state and federal confidentiality laws. 

Section 1.05 Warrant of Authority 

Each Party warrants to the other that each has full authority to enter into this Agreement 
and perform under its terms. 

Section 1.06 Indemnity 

Rosecrance agrees to indemnify the County and its officers, directors, and employees 
from and against any and all claims, costs, and liabilities (including the fees and expenses of 
counsel) as a result of a breach of this Agreement by Rosecrance or the negligent or willful 
misconduct of Rosecrance or Rosecrance’s employees, agents, and representatives. In no manner 
shall employees of Rosecrance be construed to be employees of the County. This section shall 
survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason.   

Section 1.07 Cooperation 

Each Party to this Agreement has the duty to consult and cooperate with the other in the 
performance, development, and implementation of the Jail Alternatives Treatment Program. 
Rosecrance agrees to name a person to represent it in discussions and development of the 
program and to whom the County can forward suggestions and recommendations concerning 
the program as well as any notices under this Agreement. 

Article II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Subject to the agreed upon funding levels set forth in Exhibit A, Rosecrance agrees to provide the 
following services. The Parties’ agree and understand that all services provided by Rosecrance 
under this Agreement shall be in compliance with all federal and state standards applicable to 
substance use disorder treatment. . The services to be performed by the Contractor under this 
Agreement shall include the following and that of Exhibit C. 



Section 2.01 Assessments 

Rosecrance agrees to provide assessments in the Winnebago County Jail for men and 
women who are referred by the County or the Court to the Jail Alternatives Treatment Program. 
Rosecrance will be available to provide up to 20 hours of assessment services per week in the jail 
for those people referred for an assessment by County staff. If the Rosecrance employee assigned 
to provide assessments in the Jail is absent from work for more than three business days, 
Rosecrance will assign another employee to provide assessments in the Jail.  

Every person who is referred for an assessment by the County or the Court will receive a 
clinical assessment to evaluate the individual’s treatment and case management needs and to 
determine their eligibility for further treatment services. Rosecrance will provide written 
assessment reports to County employees upon request in compliance with Sections 1.03 and 
1.04. The written assessment will contain diagnostic impression, the recommended level of 
substance use disorder treatment, and identification of any medical and psychological concerns. 

Section 2.02 Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services 

Rosecrance will provide Level 1 outpatient substance use disorder treatment to 
appropriate clients consisting of two groups: one group for men and one group for women. Each 
group will meet 3 times per week for a total of 7.5 hours per week. Treatment services will be 
provided in the Winnebago County Jail according to a schedule mutually agreeable to the parties 
and will follow the American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) patient placement and 
continued stay criteria. Clients will be given direct access to further outpatient treatment services 
at Rosecrance upon release. Rosecrance will utilize ASAM criteria and its professional judgment 
to determine the appropriate services and treatment plan for each individual program participant 
in consultation with the County and its representatives. 

Section 2.03 Program Oversight 

Rosecrance will provide program oversight by a Program Director to oversee services and 
employees and to provide monthly supervision, weekly case staffing, treatment plan review, 
scheduling and assessment management, and utilization reporting. 

Program review meetings involving the Program Director and staff from the Winnebago 
County Jail are anticipated to occur on a monthly basis during the term of this Agreement. The 
purpose of these meetings is to assess all services provided and seek out new programmatic ways 
to improve upon the efficient delivery of services. The Program Director will participate in these 
program review meetings, create a meeting schedule, and facilitate these meetings. Other 
agencies may be asked to participate in these program review meetings.  



Section 2.04 Modification Upon Agreement 

Services, personnel, treatment hours, and locations are subject to change as agreed upon 
between the County and Rosecrance. 

Article III. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES PROVIDED 

Section 3.01 Budget Incorporation 

A budget agreed to by Rosecrance and the County detailing the fee schedule and 
anticipated funding amounts is hereby incorporated into this Agreement and attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. Rosecrance agrees that the total reimbursement for all services performed pursuant to 
this Agreement will not exceed the total amount reflected on the annual budget submitted and 
approved by the County. Rosecrance will invoice for actual costs not to exceed the annual 
budgeted amount. All rates set forth in Article III are subject to renegotiation between the Parties 
at any point during the Term of this Agreement, but no change in rates will take effect during the 
Term of this Agreement unless a written amendment to this Agreement reflecting this change is 
approved by the Parties.  

Section 3.02 Compensation for Assessment Services 

Corresponding with those services set forth in Section 2.01, County agrees to pay 50% of 
the salary for a licensed or certified clinical assessor employed by Rosecrance as shown on the 
budget incorporated as Exhibit A. The County also agrees to pay fringe benefits at the percentage 
and rate as shown on the budget incorporated as Exhibit A. This amount is intended to pay for 
non-billable services provided by the assessor.  

Section 3.03 Compensation for Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services 

Corresponding with those services set forth in Section 2.02, County will pay Rosecrance 
for the Level 1 outpatient substance use disorder treatment services according to the fee 
schedule established by the Illinois Department of Human Services, Division of Substance Use 
Prevention and Recovery (SUPR) in effect at the time the services are provided. A copy of the 
current SUPR rates in effect as of the date of this Agreement are attached as Exhibit B. Level 1 
services will be billed on a fee-for-service basis according to the number of clients in each group 
and based on the number of units of service delivered. County agrees to pay Rosecrance for each 
unit of service delivered to clients in the Jail Alternatives Treatment Program. 



Section 3.04 Compensation for Program Oversight 

Corresponding with those services set forth in Section 2.03, County agrees to pay 10% of 
the salary for the Program Director employed by Rosecrance as shown on the budget 
incorporated as Exhibit A.  The County also agrees to pay fringe benefits at the percentage and 
rate shown on the budget incorporated as Exhibit A.  

Section 3.05 Indirect Costs 

County agrees to pay Rosecrance for indirect costs in addition to payment for all services 
listed above that will compensate Rosecrance for all other direct and indirect expenses 
associated with the provision of services under this Agreement. County agrees to pay Rosecrance 
for its indirect costs at Rosecrance’s current federally approved indirect cost rate, calculated as a 
percentage of the actual monthly subtotal for services rendered during the term of this 
Agreement. Should Rosecrance’s federally approved indirect cost rate change during the Term of 
this Agreement, the parties will cooperate to seek a budget amendment. Should the budget 
amendment not be approved, Rosecrance agrees to reimbursement for its indirect costs at the 
federally approved rate in effect on the first day of the Term of this Agreement. 

Section 3.06 Reporting and Invoices 

Rosecrance will submit monthly invoices to the County in accordance with Section 3 of 
this Agreement no later than the 10th day of each month. Invoices shall be submitted in a format 
requested by the County and include supporting service documentation as requested by the 
County. Subject to Section 1.03 and 1.04, supporting documentation to be included with invoices 
includes timesheets, documentation of personnel costs, itemized lists of completed assessments, 
name of County, Court, or Jail staff person requesting the assessment or service, and sign-in 
sheets for group attendance. Invoices shall be payable by County in accordance with the Illinois 
Local Government Prompt Payment Act (50 ILCS 505/1 et. seq). Any amounts not timely paid will 
accrue interest as set forth in the Illinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act. 

Additionally, Rosecrance agrees to provide relevant data by submitting a monthly jail 
services report as well as performance metrics as outlined in Exhibit C to include summary 
narrative on a quarterly basis. Rosecrance agrees to comply with all reporting, data collection 
and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by Winnebago County following the deadlines 
identified below. 

REPORTING SCHEDULE 

Reporting Period Date Required Due Date 

January - March Data Report, Periodic Financial Report April 15th 

April - June Data Report, Periodic Financial Report July 15th 

July - September Data Report, Periodic Financial Report October 15th 

October - December Data Report, Periodic Financial Report January 15th 
Note: If a due date falls on a weekend, report is due on the preceding Friday  



 

 

 
Article IV. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Section 4.01 No Third-Party Beneficiaries 
 

This Agreement shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any Person or other third 
party other than the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

 
Section 4.02 Non-Solicitation 
 

During the Term of this Agreement and for a period of twelve (12) months thereafter, 
neither party shall directly solicit for employment any person who performed any work under 
this Agreement who is then in the employment of the other party. A general notice of a job 
opening or other similar general publication to fill employment openings, including on the 
internet, shall not be construed as a solicitation for the purposes of this Section, and the hiring 
of any such employees who freely responds thereto shall not be a breach of this Section.  

 
Section 4.03 Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction 
 

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Illinois. The Parties agree that all actions or proceedings arising in connection 
with this Agreement shall be tried and litigated in the County of Winnebago, Illinois.   

 
Section 4.04 Counterparts; Signatures 
 

The Parties agree that this Agreement may be executed in multiple originals, each of 
which shall be considered an original for all purposes and, collectively, shall be considered to 
constitute this Agreement. The Parties further agree that signatures transmitted by facsimile or 
in Portable Document Format (pdf) may be considered an original for all purposes, including, 
without limitation, the execution of this Agreement and enforcement of this Agreement. 

 
Section 4.05 Entire Agreement; Amendment 
 

This Agreement supersedes all previous agreements, oral or written, and constitutes the 
entire agreement between the Parties respecting the subject matter of this Agreement, and 
neither Party shall be entitled to benefits other than those specified herein.  As between the 
Parties, oral statements or prior written materials which are not specifically incorporated herein 
shall not be of any force and effect.  The Parties specifically acknowledge that in entering into 
and executing this Agreement, the Parties rely solely upon the representations and agreements 
contained in this Agreement and no others.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only 
by an agreement in writing signed by the Parties. 

 



Section 4.06 Notices 

All notices, requests and communications which are required or may be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally 
or sent by nationally recognized overnight carrier or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested.   

Notices to the County shall be sent to the following address: 

Winnebago County 
Attn: County Administrator 
404 Elm Street 
Suite 500 
Rockford, IL 61101 

Notices to Rosecrance shall be sent to the following address: 

Rosecrance, Inc. 
Attn: David Gomel, President 
1021 North Mulford Road 
Rockford, IL 61107 

Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective upon receipt, if delivered personally, or one (1) 
day after mailing if sent by overnight carrier, or three (3) days after deposit in the U.S. mail, with 
proper postage and properly addressed. 

Section 4.07 Assignment 

This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred, without the prior, express, written 
consent of the Parties. 

This Agreement between Rosecrance and the County shall be effective as of the date indicated 
in the first sentence of this Agreement. 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY, ILLINOIS ROSECRANCE, INC., an Illinois not for profit 
corporation 

By: ____________________________ By: ____________________________ 
Name: Joseph V. Chiarelli Name:  David Gomel 
Title: Winnebago County Board Chairman Title:  President 



Budget Summary 

Winnebago County Jail Alternatives Treatment Program FY21 Grant 

Personnel: 

Program Director (10%)      9,550.34 

Assessor (50%)    27,992.39 

Fringe Benefits: 

Program Director (30%)      2,865.10 

Assessor (30%)      8,397.72 

Fee-for-Service: 

Non-reimbursable Services and Uninsured 

costs 

 106,835.90 

Indirect Costs: 

Federal Indirect Cost Rate (.2612%)   40,653.55 

Total 196,295.00 



1 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@wincoil.us 

Public Safety Sales Tax Alternative Funding 
Budget Detail Worksheet and Narrative 

A. Personnel / Salary– List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activities must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

  TOTAL SALARY 

SALARY NARRATIVE: 

EXHIBIT A

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


2 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@wincoil.us 

B. Fringe Benefits—Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established
formula. Fringe benefits are for the personnel listed in budget category (A) and for 100% time
devoted to the project.

Name/Position Computation Cost 

 TOTAL FRINGE 

 FRINGE NARRATIVE: 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


3 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@wincoil.us 

C. Travel -- Itemize travel expenses of project personnel by purpose (e.g., staff to training, field
interviews, advisory group meeting, etc.). Indicate source of Travel Policies applied, Applicant or
Federal Travel Regulations.

Purpose of Travel Location Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL TRAVEL 

TRAVEL NARATIVE: 

D. Supplies

Supply Item Computation Cost 

 TOTAL SUPPLIES 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


4 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@wincoil.us 

  SUPPLY NARRATIVE: 

E. Other Costs

Item Computation Cost 

  OTHER COSTS NARRATIVE: 

           TOTAL OTHER

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


5 

Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@wincoil.us 

Budget Category Amount 

A. Personnel

B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel

D. Supplies

E. Other Costs

 TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


SUPR Contractual Policy Manual     7 

FY 2021 REIMBURSEMENT RATES

The rates established to reimburse or calculate earnings represent what the Department has determined 
it will pay for each service. However, the applicable rate may not always cover the actual cost of the 
service. When this occurs, it is expected that organizations can demonstrate how the remainder of the 
cost will be collected to ensure fiscal solvency. Additionally, organizations who serve patients who are not 
contract eligible, cannot charge such patients LESS than the Department uniform or negotiated rate 
for that service. 

Covered Services and Reimbursement rates for FY 2021 are as follows: 

Service 
Minimum Unit 

of Service Code Rate 

Admission and Discharge Assessment Quarter Hour AAS $70.36 – Per Hour 
$17.59 – Per Quarter Hour 

Level 1 (Individual) Quarter Hour OP $66.92 – Per Hour 
$16.73 – Per Quarter Hour 

Level 1 (Group) Quarter Hour OP $25.36 – Per Hour 
$ 6.34 – Per Quarter Hour 

Level 2 (Individual) Quarter Hour OR $66.92 – Per Hour 
$16.73 – Per Quarter Hour 

Level 2 (Group) Quarter Hour OR $25.36 – Per Hour 
$ 6.34 – Per Quarter Hour 

Level 3.1 Daily HH $71.97 – Daily 

Level 3.2 or 3.7 (Withdrawal 
Management)  

Daily DX Daily Provider/Site Specific 

Level 3.5 Daily RR Daily Provider/Site Specific 

Recovery Home - Adult Daily RH $55.92 

Recovery Home - Adolescent Daily RH $141.99 – Daily 

Case Management Quarter Hour CM $51.84 – Per Hour 
$12.96 – Per Quarter Hour 

Psychiatric Evaluation Per Encounter/Per 
Day 

$87.60 – Per Encounter/Per Day 

Medication Assisted Recovery 
(Methadone for Opioid Use Disorder) 

Weekly OP $75.40 – Weekly 

Early Intervention (Individual) Quarter Hour EI $66.92 – Per Hour 
$16.73 – Per Quarter Hour 

Early Intervention (Group) Quarter Hour EI $25.36 – Per Hour 
$ 6.34 – Per Quarter Hour 

Community Intervention Quarter Hour CIH $50.60 – Per Hour 
$12.65 – Per Quarter Hour 

Child Domiciliary Support Daily CRD $54.06 – Daily 

Toxicology Per Test TOX $10.10 – Per Test 

Exhibit B - SUPR Reimbursement Rates



Chairman’s Office of Criminal Justice Initiatives | 404 Elm Street, Suite 533, Rockford, IL 61101 | www.wincoil.us 

Phone: (815) 319- 4059 | Email: mdokken@wincoil.us 

EXHIBIT C

One of the goals of the Winnebago County 1% Safety Tax Fund is to financially support organizations 

which, in the opinion of the Winnebago County Board and its Administration, seek to reduce violent crime 

and are consistent with the intended use of the Sales Tax Fund when other funds, public or private, are not 

available. 

Submit applications to: Winnebago County Board Office, 404 Elm Street, #533, Rockford, IL 61101 or 

mdokken@wincoil.us by July 8, 2021, 5:00 p.m. Central. 

Organization Name: Rosecrance 

IRS Tax ID No: 36-2235167 

Amount requested:   $196,295 

I. ORGANIZATION BACKGROUND

a) Brief description of organization history and purpose

b) Describe history managing grants and/or other funding

Rosecrance has served as an industry leader in behavioral health, and has provided quality service to 

northern and central Illinois communities for over 100 years. Our standard of excellence for treatment 

involves a multidisciplinary approach to addiction treatment that draws on the expertise and 

experience of our medical and psychiatric staff, as well as licensed and certified masters prepared 

clinicians. Rosecrance offers a comprehensive spectrum of behavioral health services that include 

residential, outpatient and detox services for the treatment of substance abuse disorders as well as 

community based mental health services for Men, Women Youth and adults. Rosecrance has 

specialized in the treatment those involved in the criminal justice system since 1994, and are currently 

partnered with Winnebago, Boone, McHenry and Champagne counties to provide services to those 

involved with their probation departments including Drug Court, Mental Health Court, Youth Recovery 

Court, and family Recovery court. Rosecrance has also been contracted to provide residential and 

outpatient services to the Illinois Department of corrections parolees since 1999 

Rosecrance has managed multiple local, state and federal grants over our 100 year history. Currently 

we receive grants through Illinois SUPR and the State Opioid Response initiative, as well as grants 

through Winnebago, and Boone Counties for in jail services and specialty court programs. We also 

receive grant funding through Illinois Department of Human Services and are paneled with multiple 

insurance companies 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us
mailto:mdokken@wincoil.us


2 

c) Present sources of funding, both organizationally and for the program in which you are seeking

funding.

d) If this program related to behavioral health, will you be applying to the Winnebago County Mental

Health Board in 2022?

Yes No Not Applicable 

II. SERVICE, PROGRAM, or PROJECT OVERVIEW

a) Provide overview of proposed service, program, project to be supported or delivered by requested

funds. Include eligibility requirements, demographics served, and how it will lead to a reduction in

violent crime.

Rosecrance has provided SUPR Licensed level 1 services to detainees in the Winnebago County Jail 

for over 10 years. Those services include 7.5 hours of group treatment in both the men's and 

woman's jails. Rosecrance would use a comprehensive multidimensional assessment tool to 

determine a diagnosis and treatment recommendations. We employ the use of evidence based 

best practices, utilizing cognitive behavioral and brief intervention therapies, combined with a 

trauma informed approach to assist clients in the development of a healthy prosocial sober 

lifestyle. We provide clients with substance use education, relapse prevention skills, 12 step 

support education and orientation, as well as strategies to address criminal behavior and thinking. 

Upon their release from the jail they are seamlessly transitioned to our community based 

outpatient programs for continued substance use disorder treatment. We obtain referrals to the 

program through court orders, probation, attorneys as well as self-referrals. 

The benefits of this program has been the ability to connect with those incarcerated individuals at 

a point where they are most motivated for change in their lives. By initiating treatment services 

while they are incarcerated we are able to more easily engage them at a time where they are 

most receptive to the idea of a recovery lifestyle. This time allows the clients to critically evaluate 

their lifestyle choices, explore the health of their family and social relationships obtain education 

on the disease of addiction, relapse, cognitive processes, and the 12 step model of recovery and 

identify their relapse triggers and how to manage them effectively once they leave jail. Upon 

release from jail the clients are already enrolled in Rosecrance services and can seamlessly 

transition to our wide spectrum community based services with no delay. 

Rosecrance receives funding through multiple avenues both public and private. We also contract 

through Medicaid and Managed Medicaid, and multiple private insurance companies. We have been 

contracted with the county over the last 10 plus years to provide services in the Winnebago County 

jail through the Winnebago County1% sales tax 



  3 

b) Describe current and projected project/program partnerships.  

III. PROGRAM PROCESSES 

a) Describe referral, intake and assessment process; include description of evidence-based practices 

used. 

 

Referrals are made to the program through court orders from the 17th judicial circuit, from 

Winnebago County probation officers, attorneys and through detainees submitting a request 

ticket to the jail. Once the referral is received a 1/2 time assessor, funded through the 1% 

contract, goes into the jail and completes a multidisciplinary substance use disorder assessment 

according to requirements of Illinois SUPR 2060 licensure requirements. We also complete a 

Rosecrance Suicide Risk assessment at the time of assessment and throughout treatment as 

needed. The diagnosis and recommendations are subsequently reviewed by our medical director 

for appropriateness and approval. A treatment plan is then developed and reviewed regularly as 

licensure requires. At client intake and at periods throughout treatment and post treatment we 

also complete the Brief Addiction Monitor (BAM) and the Patient Health Questionnaire (PHQ9) 

tools to assess outcomes on an ongoing basis. Throughout treatment the client is continually 

assessed for progress and needs through regularly scheduled continued stay reviews as mandated 

by SUPR 2060 licensure requirements. 

This program has worked closely with the Winnebago County Specialty Courts as well as the 

Winnebago County probation and pretrial, The States attorneys and public defender’s office to 

help their client’s gain strong footing in a recovery lifestyle prior to their return to the community. 

Rosecrance also works with the Illinois State Opiate Response initiative to engage those client in 

jail who have an opiate or stimulant use disorder to inform and enroll those interested in our 

Medication Assisted Treatment program that allows them to initiate needed medication while in 

the jail 



4 

b) Describe treatment, counseling, and case management. Be specific.

Treatment consists of SUPR Licensed level 1 group treatment that includes 2.5 hours of group 

3 times per week. Group incorporates the use of cognitive behavioral therapy, substance use 

education, orientation to medication assisted therapies, relapse prevention and orientation to 

the 12 steps and 12 step work. Cognitive behavioral therapy focuses on the clients 

irresponsible thought patterns and helps them explore alternatives to their destructive 

thought patterns and assist them in making that change. Clients work to identify those triggers 

that will jeopardize their recovery once they return to the community and develop plans to 

manage those triggers while they work to build and strengthen their recovery program and 

healthy lifestyle. Case management occurs through regular, ongoing communication with their 

probation officer and attorney as well as through active participation in the specialty court 

processes. The funded counselors who works with those clients in the jail will be their 

counselor upon their return to the community allowing for a rapport to be developed without 

worry that it will be broken once the detainee is released, and will continue in our community 

based programming. 

The staff that work in the Jail also have their offices in the RIC center where they are able to 

provide regular communication with the probation staff in person as well as through their 

ability to document client activity in the counties Full Court Enterprise system. 

Rosecrance uses resources through the State Opiate Response (SOR) grant to provide 

education and medication assisted therapies to those inmates with a history of opiate and 

stimulant abuse. We are able work with the courts to furlough inmates to come to Rosecrance 

and start an appropriate medication prior to their release from jail where they are at most risk 

of overdose.  



5 

c) Describe staff roles; include education, training, and licensure requirements.

d) Describe program oversight and accountability.

Two staff work in the jail for part of their day to provide 7.5 hours of group in the men's jail and 7.5 

hours in the woman's jail each week. Funding from the grant pays for the treatment services 

provided in the jail as there is no alternative funding available for substance use disorder treatment 

for Winnebago County Jail inmates. Those two staff then run a combined Level 2 IOP (12 hours per 

week) group at the RIC center for those clients who are released from jail to allow for a seamless 

transition to community based treatment. The group at the RIC center does not use County 1% tax 

funding, but rather the client’s services are paid for by Illinois SUPR, Medicaid or another third party 

payer. The counselors are masters prepared clinicians and licensed CADC or actively pursuing these 

credentials under the requirements of SUPR 2060 licensure. This contract also pays for a 1/2 time 

assessor to complete assessments in accordance with SUPR 2060 requirements in the Winnebago 

County Jail. Those assessed are then placed in the appropriate jail group or if released from Jail are 

placed in the appropriate community based group. These assessments are completed at the request 

of court order, probation, or attorney referral or through inmate self-referral. This position is staffed 

by a CADC licensed clinician. This position is funded at 1/2 their salary through the County 1% tax. 

The key performance indicators (KPI) for this program are tracked weekly, monthly and annually 

through supervision, annual evaluations and client satisfaction surveys. the KPI's that are tracked are 

average daily attendance for the groups, the percentage of client attendance at the groups, 

individual group member attendance, types of discharge and length of stay and counselor daily 

productivity, Client records are regularly reviewed to insure quality of service and adherence to 

regulatory standards. Monthly, Rosecrance submits an invoice to the county for the group and 

individual services provided and are linked directly to client documentation and sign in sheets, and 

are open to audit. In the past Rosecrance would complete a monthly jail services report to the county 

showing number of inmates served and services provided. This was stopped after changes were 

made within the county. Rosecrance would be more than happy to once again provide these reports 

to the county designee. 



  6 

 

 

e) If program will use volunteers, describe volunteer roles and if applicable, how they will be trained.  

 

f) If program provides direct services, are background checks performed on staff and volunteers? 

Yes    No    Not Applicable 

 

If no or not applicable, please explain: 

 

IV. GOALS/PERFORMANCE MEASURES/STANDARDS 

Instructions: Complete the blanks in table below using projected objectives for the funded year. Your data 

report will reflect these numbers. Please note that any change to objectives will need to be approved by 

Winnebago County Administration. Must include number served for each service. 

GOAL:  

Objectives/Standards Performance Measures Projected  

Assess 100% of all in custody 

referrals for Substance Abuse 

Treatment 

Number of assessments completed in the jail 

monthly 

400 assessments 

Annually 

Implement outcome measures to 

monitor client progress in recovery 

using the Brief Addiction Monitor 

(BAM) 

Measure clients perceived recovery 

improvement from admission through 

treatment. 

70% of clients 

show 

improvement 

Transition 70% of participants to 

community based treatment upon 

release 

Number of participants released that attend 

their first community based appointment 
91 

No volunteers will be used 

 



7 

Have 90% attendance for 

participants in the jail based 

groups 

The percentage of participants who attend 

group daily 
90% 

Offer group for both men and 

women 3 times per week for 7.5 

hours 

The number of groups offered monthly in 

the jail 

26 groups per 

month 

Connection to Medication Assisted 

Therapies 

The monthly number of those diagnosed 

with opiate and stimulant use disorder 

linked to Medication Assisted Therapies 

prior to leaving the jail. 

80% of those 

assessed with the 

appropriate 

diagnosis 

V. PROJECTED BUDGET

Please complete attached budget template, including full budget narrative, using program dates 

10/01/2021 – 09/30/2022. 

Contact Information: Please complete this table. 

Name: 
Carlene Cardosi 

Title: 
Regional President, Rosecrance Inc. 

Street Address: 
1021 North Mulford Rd. 

City, State, Zip: 
Rockford Illinois, 61107 

Phone: 
888-928-0212

Email: 
ccardosi@rosecrance.org 

























































                   COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
           November 23, 2021 

 
RESOLUTION  

OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

2021 CR _______ 

SUBMITTED BY:  PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

SPONSORED BY: BURT GERL  
                                    JIM WEBSTER 

 

 
RESOLUTION REGARDING SECOND AMENDMENT SANCTUARY  

 
 

Resolution opposing the passage of any bill where the Illinois General Assembly desires to 
restrict the individual rights of US Citizens as protected by the Second Amendment of the United 
States Constitution: 

WHEREAS, the Second Amendment to the United States Constitution declares that “…the right 
of the people to keep and bear Arms shall not be infringed”; and 

WHEREAS, Section 22 of Article 1 of the Illinois State Constitution declares that “Subject only 
to the police power, the right of the individual citizen to keep and bear arms shall not be 
infringed”; and  

WHEREAS, the Right of the People to Keep and Bear Arms for defense of Life, Liberty, and 
property is regarded as an Inalienable Right by the People of Winnebago County, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the People of Winnebago County, Illinois, derive economic benefit from all safe 
forms of firearms recreation, hunting, and shooting conducted with Winnebago County using all 
types of firearms allowable under the United States Constitution; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Board being elected to represent the People of the State of 
Illinois and being duly sworn by your Oath to uphold the United States Constitution and the 
Constitution of the State of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois House of Representatives and the Illinois Senate, being elected by the 
People of the State of Illinois and being duly sworn by their Oath of Office to uphold the United 
States Constitution and the Constitution of the State of Illinois; and 



WHEREAS, the Governor of Illinois, being elected to represent the People of the State of 
Illinois and being duly sworn by your Oath of Office to uphold the United States Constitution 
and the Constitution of the State of Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, routinely proposed legislation to and by the Illinois State Legislature would 
infringe the Right to Keep and Bear Arms and would ban the possession and use of firearms, 
magazines, body armor now employed by individual citizens of Winnebago County, Illinois, for 
defense of Life, Liberty and Property and would ban the possession and use of firearms now 
employed for safe forms of firearms recreation, hunting and shooting conducted with Winnebago 
County, Illinois. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT BE AND IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the People of Winnebago 
County, Illinois, do hereby oppose the enactment of any legislation that would infringe upon the 
Right of the People to keep and bear arms and consider such laws to be unconstitutional and 
beyond lawful Legislative Authority. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
demands that the Illinois General Assembly cease actions restricting the Right of the People to 
keep and bear arms, and hereby demand that the Governor of Illinois veto all such legislation 
which restricts the Right of the People to keep and bear arms. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of Winnebago County is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to all members of the Illinois General 
Assembly and to the Office of the Governor. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its adoption. 

Respectfully submitted, 
    PUBLIC SAFETY AND JUDICIARY COMMITTEE 

  

AGREE       DISAGREE 

 

_________________________________   ____________________________________ 
Burt Gerl, Chairman          Burt Gerl, Chairman                               
                             
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Aaron Booker, Vice Chairman     Aaron Booker, Vice Chairman 
 
_________________________________         ___________________________________ 
Kevin McCarthy            Kevin McCarthy 
 
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
Brad Lindmark            Brad Lindmark 
 



________________________________    ____________________________________ 
Tim Nabors        Tim Nabors 
 
________________________________    _____________________________________ 
Angie Goral        Angie Goral 
 
__________________________________       _____________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd        Dorothy Redd  

 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois this _____ day of _________________, 2021. 

 

 

                      _______________________________________  
                                                                                                     Joseph Chiarelli 

          Chairman of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

______________________________   
Lori Gummow 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 

 

 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Resolution Renewing Service Agreement with Tommy Meeks 
	Resolution Renewing Service Agreement with Rosecrance for Services at Winnebago Cty. Jail
	Resolution Renewing Service Agreement with Remedies for Services at RIC
	Resolution Regarding Second Amendment Sanctuary

	NamePositionRow1: James N / Program Director
	ComputationRow1: $95,503.32*10%
	CostRow1: 9550.34
	NamePositionRow2: Johnny C / PT Assessor
	ComputationRow2: $55,984.78*50%
	CostRow2: 27992.39
	NamePositionRow3: 
	ComputationRow3: 
	CostRow3: 
	NamePositionRow4: 
	ComputationRow4: 
	CostRow4: 
	NamePositionRow5: 
	ComputationRow5: 
	CostRow5: 
	NamePositionRow6: 
	ComputationRow6: 
	CostRow6: 
	CostTOTAL SALARY: 37542.73
	SALARY NARRATIVE: Program Director: 

Position Purpose: Facilitate, coordinate and supervise all clinical components of the Jail Alternative program.  Provide and monitor continuity of program services in an ethical, legal and moral manner within a safe and therapeutic environment, consistent with applicable regulatory and accreditation standards.  Participate as a team member in the delivery of mental health treatment services to patients and their families and facilitate the issues of recovery into their daily living situations.  10% of the director's salary and related costs are allocated to this grant. 

Patient Assessor/Sr Addictions Counselor (Patient Assessor):

Position Purpose:  Participate as a team member in the delivery of addictions treatment services and assessments to clients and facilitate the issues of recovery into their daily living situations.  Provide continuity of program services in an ethical, legal and moral manner within a safe and therapeutic environment, consistent with applicable regulatory and accreditation standards.  Promote the treatment concepts and work cooperatively with all staff to implement treatment services.

	NamePositionRow1_2: James N / Program Director
	ComputationRow1_2: 9550.34*.30
	CostRow1_2: 2865.10
	NamePositionRow2_2: Johnny C / PT Assessor
	ComputationRow2_2: 27992.39*.30
	CostRow2_2: 8397.72
	NamePositionRow3_2: 
	ComputationRow3_2: 
	CostRow3_2: 
	NamePositionRow4_2: 
	ComputationRow4_2: 
	CostRow4_2: 
	NamePositionRow5_2: 
	ComputationRow5_2: 
	CostRow5_2: 
	NamePositionRow6_2: 
	ComputationRow6_2: 
	CostRow6_2: 
	NamePositionRow7: 
	ComputationRow7: 
	CostRow7: 
	NamePositionRow8: 
	ComputationRow8: 
	CostRow8: 
	NamePositionRow9: 
	ComputationRow9: 
	CostRow9: 
	NamePositionRow10: 
	ComputationRow10: 
	CostRow10: 
	NamePositionRow11: 
	ComputationRow11: 
	CostRow11: 
	NamePositionRow12: 
	ComputationRow12: 
	CostRow12: 
	NamePositionRow13: 
	ComputationRow13: 
	CostRow13: 
	NamePositionRow14: 
	ComputationRow14: 
	CostRow14: 
	NamePositionRow15: 
	ComputationRow15: 
	CostRow15: 
	NamePositionRow16: 
	ComputationRow16: 
	CostRow16: 
	NamePositionRow17: 
	ComputationRow17: 
	CostRow17: 
	CostTOTAL FRINGE: 11262.82
	FRINGE NARRATIVE: Total Fringe Benefits of 30% include Group Health/Dental/Life 17.65%, 401K Match 2.01%, Retirement 1.53%, FICA / Workers Comp/Unemployment 8.54%, Other .27%
	Purpose of TravelRow1: 
	LocationRow1: 
	ItemRow1: 
	ComputationRow1_3: 
	CostRow1_3: 
	Purpose of TravelRow2: 
	LocationRow2: 
	ItemRow2: 
	ComputationRow2_3: 
	CostRow2_3: 
	Purpose of TravelRow3: 
	LocationRow3: 
	ItemRow3: 
	ComputationRow3_3: 
	CostRow3_3: 
	CostTOTAL TRAVEL: 0
	TRAVEL NARATIVE: Travel costs are considered indirect and are part of the Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement.
	Supply ItemRow1: 
	ComputationRow1_4: 
	CostRow1_4: 
	Supply ItemRow2: 
	ComputationRow2_4: 
	CostRow2_4: 
	Supply ItemRow3: 
	ComputationRow3_4: 
	CostRow3_4: 
	Supply ItemRow4: 
	ComputationRow4_3: 
	CostRow4_3: 
	Supply ItemRow5: 
	ComputationRow5_3: 
	CostRow5_3: 
	Supply ItemRow6: 
	ComputationRow6_3: 
	CostRow6_3: 
	CostTOTAL SUPPLIES: 0
	SUPPLY NARRATIVE: No reimbursement for supplies is included in this budget. 

	ItemRow1_2: CoPays, Deductibles and Uninsured
	ComputationRow1_5: 
	CostRow1_5: 106835.90
	ItemRow2_2: Indirect Cost 
	ComputationRow2_5: 155641.45*.2612%
	CostRow2_5: 40653.55
	ItemRow3_2: 
	ComputationRow3_5: 
	CostRow3_5: 
	ItemRow4: 
	ComputationRow4_4: 
	CostRow4_4: 
	ItemRow5: 
	ComputationRow5_4: 
	CostRow5_4: 
	CostTotalOTHER: 147489.45
	OTHER COSTS NARRATIVE: CoPays, Deductibles and Uninsured costs are those costs of services provided to clients on a fee for service basis as needed.  These costs are not otherwise funded.  


Rosecrance has a Federally Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement. Current overhead rate is 26.12%
	AmountA Personnel: 37542.73
	AmountB Fringe Benefits: 11262.82
	AmountC Travel: 0
	AmountD Supplies: 0
	AmountE Other Costs: 147489.45
	AmountTOTAL PROJECT COSTS: 196295


